
HEALTH FACILITIES ADVISORY COMMITTEE (HFAC) 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES  

 
March 30, 2009, 12:00 P.M. (Eastern Time) 

Conference Call 
 

Roll Call: 
 
 Chairman:  Mr. Tommy Bowman   X 
 
 Vice-Chairman: CAPT Keith Shortall    X    
 
 Members:  CAPT Jose Cuzme     X  CAPT Dale Mossefin     X  
    Mr. Jim Biasco           X  CDR Brian Hroch     X  
    Mr. Ken Harper          (  )  CDR Mat Martinson     (   ) 
 
 Executive Secretary: Mr. Howard Wellspring    X  
 
 Alternates:  CAPT Michael Weaver, CAPT Rick Wermers 
 
 Guests:  CDR Darrell LaRoche, CAPT Kevin Molloy 
   
Quorum Requirement per Technical Handbook Chapter 4-1:  “A quorum consists of at least 50 percent of the HFAC voting 
membership. A person attending as sit-in representative of another member shall not be counted in determining the quorum 
requirement and cannot vote.”   

 
SPECIAL CONFERENCE CALL to discuss security issues related to draft Technical 
Handbook Chapter 21-15 Security Level Selection for Use in the Design of New Federal 
Facilities. 
 
 Tommy began by summarizing the HFAC Minutes of 16 Oct 2008 regarding this 

subject.  He asked Darrell for the status of the security checklist and definition of 
“security criteria review”. 

 Darrell replied that he and Kevin Molloy are preparing a security guideline document 
that will include new and existing facilities and leased facilities.   

 Darrell concurred that the security considerations or risk assessment should begin 
with the development of the Program Justification Document (PJD) and firmed up in 
the Program of Requirements (POR).   

 Darrell said changes by the Interagency Security Committee in Feb 2008 changed the 
“levels” of security.  He said some of the references in FEMA 426 – Reference 
Manual to Mitigate Potential Terrorist Attacks Against Buildings, Dec 2003, were 
“confusing” and outdated.   

 Darrell concurred with Jim’s suggestion to reference his (Darrell) office’s ‘to be 
developed’ security policy rather than reference FEMA 426.  Darrell suggested to add 
security requirements in the A/E Design Guide.   

 Michael suggested canceling Chapter 21-15 and include all security requirements in 
the PJD and POR.  Jim objected stating this chapter is needed to provide guidance to 



the planners involved with security and to describe the process of interfacing security 
requirements with the design and construction process. 

 Darrell concurred with Jim to keep the description of the process but to delete 
references to actual standards. 

 Tommy asked Darrell for a checklist to ensure each security requirement is 
considered.  Darrell volunteered to provide language to the draft Chapter 21-15 to 
help guide the security review. 

 Darrell said the security design requirements began with a physical security 
assessment.  This assessment identifies the threats and vulnerabilities that translate 
into design requirements to address the vulnerabilities.     

 Tommy asked Darrell if the “security” sub-consultant is expected to locate “locks” or 
will the assessment determine this requirement.  Darrell replied that performance 
specifications should be used rather than prescriptive specifications for the design of 
security elements. 

 Michael asked if the security levels described in the FEMA 426 document will be 
used by OES for IHS facilities and Darrell replied yes. 

 Tommy asked how the security requirement will affect projects currently under 
design.  Keith asked the same question specifically for Ft Yuma and San Carlos.  
Darrell stated each Area has a Security Point of Contact (SecPOC) and somebody 
trained as a physical security specialist or an individual designated with this 
additional duty.  The SecPOC and Darrell’s office will review the drawings and 
provide helpful comments.  However, he said he will not “chase” projects already in 
the “pipeline”.   

 Tommy asked what form will the “help” take for San Carlos and are there any 
documented review comments on security so far.  Darrell stated at Design 
Development (DD) or 50% design, his office is willing to review drawings and 
specifications.  But the recommendations may be restrained to not adversely affect 
the project’s budget and timeline. 

 Tommy asked about Ft Yuma which has just started design.  Darrell replied he would 
get the documents from Jose.  The HQ Emergency Services would initiate the 
Threat/Vulnerability Assessment.  Kevin added they will provide basic general 
guidelines now rather than build from a checklist.  Darrell stated his office will 
review the project thru planning and design phases.  Darrell said he has already 
coordinated with Gary Shelton to share his design submittal; therefore, an additional 
drawing set will not be necessary. 

 Darrell restated his offer to provide a 2 page document regarding physical security, 
security assessment, and a timeline.  Michael suggested just editing the draft Chapter 
21-15 instead of writing a separate document.  Darrell agreed and Jim volunteered to 
e-mail Darrell the most recent version dated Dec 4 that includes Lee Robison’s edits.  
Darrell stated he could finish the edits by the end of the week. 

 Keith asked when the security chapter that Darrell and Kevin are working on will be 
completed.  Darrell replied he expects to have it completed within 3 months. 

 Michael asked when the HFAC should re-visit this issue.  Tommy asked if there was 
any necessity to resolve this before the next meeting in Seattle next month.  Michael 
commented that this could wait until the next meeting and will give the HFAC 
members time to “digest” it. 



 Tommy asked Darrell if he would have his draft security chapter available no later 
than July 1.  Darrell agreed. 

 Keith commented that Darrell’s draft security chapter should include consideration 
for 638 contracts.  Darrell agreed. 

 
Added Agenda Item to discuss Technical Handbook processing was not discussed.   
 
Action Items:  
  

 Jim Biasco will provide copy of the most recent draft Chapter 21-15 to Darrell 
LaRoche. 

 Darrell LaRoche will edit the draft Chapter 21-15 and provide revision to the 
executive secretary no later than April 3.  Howard will distribute this revision 
to the HFAC members. 

 Darrell will submit his draft security chapter to the executive secretary no later 
than July 1. 

 
Adjournment:  Jose motioned to adjourn.  Brian seconded motion.  Motion to adjourn 
passed without objections. 
 


